

#### Queensland

### Mines and Energy Legislation Amendment Regulation (No. 1) 2009

#### Subordinate Legislation 2009 No. 73

made under the

Coal Mining Safety and Health Act 1999
Electricity Act 1994
Explosives Act 1999
Fossicking Act 1994
Gas Supply Act 2003
Geothermal Exploration Act 2004
Mineral Resources Act 1989
Mining and Quarrying Safety and Health Act 1999
Petroleum Act 1923
Petroleum and Gas (Production and Safety) Act 2004

#### Contents

|        |  | Page |
|--------|--|------|
| Part 1 | Preliminary  |      |
| 1      | Short title  | 4    |
| 2      | Commencement   | 4    |
| Part 2 | Amendment of Coal Mining Safety and Health Regulation 2001       |      |
| 3      | Regulation amended   | 4    |
| 4      | Amendment of s 158 (Self-rescuers and other breathing apparatus) | 4    |
| 5      | Replacement of sch 8 (Board of examiners' fees)                  | 4    |
| Part 3 | Amendment of Electricity Regulation 2006                         |      |
| 6      | Regulation amended   | 5    |
| 7      | Replacement of sch 7 (Fees payable to regulator)                 | 5    |

#### Contents

| Part 4  | Amendment of Explosives Regulation 2003   |
|---------|---|
| 8       | Regulation amended  |
| 9       | Amendment of s 75 (Authorised persons to whom explosives may be sold)               |
| 10      | Amendment of s 77 (Exposing explosives for sale in shop window prohibited)          |
| 11      | Amendment of s 117 (Requirements for explosives transported under s 50(3) of Act)   |
| 12      | Replacement of sch 2 (Fees)   |
| 13      | Amendment of sch 4 (Explosives exempt from s 44 of Act)                             |
| 14      | Amendment of sch 5 (Explosives prescribed for s 50(3) of Act)                       |
| 15      | Amendment of sch 7 (Dictionary)   |
| Part 5  | Amendment of Fossicking Regulation 1994   |
| 16      | Regulation amended  |
| 17      | Replacement of sch 1 (Fees)   |
| Part 6  | Amendment of Gas Supply Regulation 2007   |
| 18      | Regulation amended  |
| 19      | Amendment of s 51 (Annual distribution fee—Act, s 40)                               |
| 20      | Amendment of s 52 (Annual retail fee—Act, s 166)                                    |
| 21      | Replacement of sch 1 (Fees other than annual fees)                                  |
| Part 7  | Amendment of Geothermal Exploration Regulation 2005                                 |
| 22      | Regulation amended  |
| 23      | Amendment of s 7 (Annual rent)  |
| 24      | Replacement of sch 1 (Fees)   |
| Part 8  | Amendment of Mineral Resources Regulation 2003                                      |
| 25      | Regulation amended  |
| 26      | Replacement of sch 5 (Rental payable)   |
| 27      | Replacement of sch 6 (Fees)   |
| Part 9  | Amendment of Mining and Quarrying Safety and Health Regulation 2001                 |
| 28      | Regulation amended  |
| 29      | Amendment of s 112 (Specifications, instructions and other information about plant) |
| 30      | Replacement of sch 6 (Board of examiners' fees)                                     |
| Part 10 | Amendment of Petroleum and Gas (Production and Safety) Regulation 2004              |
| 31      | Regulation amended  |
| 32      | Amendment of sch 9 (Fees)   |

Page 2 2009 SL No. 73

#### Contents

| 33      | Replacement of sch 10 (Annual rent)          | 32 |
|---------|--|----|
| Part 11 | Amendment of Petroleum Regulation 2004       |    |
| 34      | Regulation amended                           | 33 |
| 35      | Amendment of s 40 (Annual rent [P&G, s 145]) | 33 |
| 36      | Replacement of sch 2 (Fees)                  | 33 |

#### Part 1 Preliminary

#### 1 Short title

This regulation may be cited as the *Mines and Energy Legislation Amendment Regulation (No. 1)* 2009.

#### 2 Commencement

- (1) This regulation, other than sections 23, 26, 32(3) and (5), 33 and 35, commences on 1 July 2009.
- (2) Sections 23, 26, 32(3) and (5), 33 and 35 commence on 1 September 2009.

# Part 2 Amendment of Coal Mining Safety and Health Regulation 2001

#### 3 Regulation amended

This part amends the Coal Mining Safety and Health Regulation 2001.

## 4 Amendment of s 158 (Self-rescuers and other breathing apparatus)

Section 158(2)(a)(ii), second occurring renumber as section 158(2)(a)(iii).

#### 5 Replacement of sch 8 (Board of examiners' fees)

Schedule 8—
omit. insert—

Page 4 2009 SL No. 73

#### 'Schedule 8 Board of examiners' fees

section 372

|   |   | \$     |
|---|---|--------|
| 1 | Application for assessment for a first class, or second class, certificate of competency          | 31.75  |
| 2 | Application for assessment for a deputy's, or open-cut examiner's, certificate of competency      | 18.95  |
| 3 | Issuing a duplicate certificate of competency to replace a lost, destroyed or defaced certificate | 6.25'. |

# Part 3 Amendment of Electricity Regulation 2006

6 Regulation amended

This part amends the *Electricity Regulation 2006*.

7 Replacement of sch 7 (Fees payable to regulator)

Schedule 7—

omit, insert—

### **'Schedule 7** Fees payable to regulator

section 226

#### 'Part 1 General

|    |  | \$     |
|----|--|--------|
| 1  | Application for generation authority (Act, s 179)  | 259.00 |
| 2  | Application for transmission authority (Act, s 188) 1  | 259.00 |
| 3  | Application for distribution authority (Act, s 196) 1  | 259.00 |
| 4  | Application for retail authority (Act, s 204)1   | 259.00 |
| 5  | Application for retail authority (Act, s 207D)   | 367.80 |
| 6  | Application for special approval (Act, s 209)  | 367.80 |
| 7  | Application for transfer of a generation, transmission or distribution authority or special approval (Act, s 184A, | 117.00 |
| _  | 193A, 201A or 212A)  | 117.00 |
| 8  | Application for approval of registration of an item of prescribed electrical equipment (s 138)                     | 162.40 |
| 9  | Application for approval of a change to an energy efficiency label (s 144)   | 162.40 |
| 10 | Application for transfer of registration of an item of   |        |
|    | prescribed electrical equipment (s 147)  | 54.15  |
| 11 | Inspection of the register (s 154)   | 10.75  |
| 12 | Copy of 1 entry in the register (s 154)  | 21.60  |

Page 6 2009 SL No. 73

\$

#### 'Part 2 Fees for chapter 5A of the Act

#### 'Division 1 Accreditation

\$ 1 Application fee (Act, s 135AM(1)(j)(ii)), if nameplate capacity of accredited power station or proposed accredited power station is— 286.80 (b) more than 1MW but less than 10MW...... 1 147.00 Annual fee (Act, s 135BE(1)(b)), if nameplate capacity 2 of accredited power station or proposed accredited power station is— (a) 286.80 (b) more than 1MW but less than 10MW..... 573.00 (c) 30MW or more but less than 100MW..... 1 720.00 

#### 'Division 2 GEC creation fee

1 For regulator to decide whether GEC was validly created—for each GEC (Act, s 135DH(1)(a)(i))..... 0.1720

#### 'Division 3 Exempted loads

\$ 1 State development exemption (Act, s 135GJ(2)(d)(iv))— 573.00 (b) annual fee..... Renewable energy exemption (Act, s 135GS(2)(e))— 2 286.80 (b) annual fee..... 114.60 Power station auxiliary load exemption (Act, s 3 135H(2)(e)(ii))— 286.80 (b) annual fee..... 114.60 Scheme participants 'Division 4 \$ Application fee (Act, s 135I(3))..... 1 286.80 Annual fee (Act, s 135IC(2))..... 2 114.60'.

# Part 4 Amendment of Explosives Regulation 2003

8 Regulation amended

This part amends the *Explosives Regulation 2003*.

9 Amendment of s 75 (Authorised persons to whom explosives may be sold)

Section 75(a), 'section 74(1)(a) to (d)'—

Page 8 2009 SL No. 73

omit, insert—
'section 74(a) to (d)'.

## 10 Amendment of s 77 (Exposing explosives for sale in shop window prohibited)

Section 77(2), 'section 74(1)(a) to (e)'—
omit, insert—
'section 74(a) to (e)'.

## 11 Amendment of s 117 (Requirements for explosives transported under s 50(3) of Act)

Section 117(2), 'section 116(1)(d)'—

omit, insert—

'section 116(1)(c)'.

#### 12 Replacement of sch 2 (Fees)

Schedule 2—
omit, insert—

#### 'Schedule 2 Fees

section 20

\$

#### [s 12]

|   |            |   | \$    |
|---|------------|---|-------|
|   |            | (ii) licence for 1 year                                 | 54.50 |
|   | (c)        | for fireworks—  |       |
|   | . ,        | (i) application for licence                             | nil   |
|   |            | (ii) licence for 1 year                                 | 61.40 |
|   | (d)        | for distress signals—                                   |       |
|   |            | (i) application for licence                             | nil   |
|   |            |   | 79.95 |
|   | (e)        | for an explosive not mentioned in paragraphs (a) to     |       |
|   |            | (d)—  |       |
|   |            | (i) application for licence                             | nil   |
|   |            | (ii) licence for 1 year                                 | 61.40 |
| 2 | Lice       | ence to manufacture explosives—                         |       |
|   | (a)        | for an explosives factory other than a mobile           |       |
|   |            | manufacturing unit—                                     |       |
|   |            | (i) application for licence                             | nil   |
|   |            | • /   | 30.90 |
|   | (b)        | for a mobile manufacturing unit—                        |       |
|   |            | (i) application for licence                             | nil   |
|   |            | \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \                   | 52.30 |
|   | (c)        | for manufacture of explosives at a place of use that is |       |
|   |            | not an explosives factory—                              |       |
|   |            | (i) application for licence                             | nil   |
|   |            | •   | 76.85 |
| 3 |            | ence to sell explosives—                                |       |
|   | (a)        | for blasting explosives—                                |       |
|   |            | (i) application for licence                             | nil   |
|   | <i>a</i> \ | <b>,</b> , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,            | 64.65 |
|   | (b)        | for propellant powders—                                 |       |
|   |            | (i) application for licence                             | nil   |
|   |            | <b>,</b> , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,            | 64.65 |
|   | (c)        | for fireworks—  |       |
|   |            | (i) application for licence                             | nil   |
|   | ,          | 3   | 64.65 |
|   | (d)        | for ammunition—   |       |

Page 10 2009 SL No. 73

|   |      |  | \$     |
|---|------|--|--------|
|   |      | (i) application for licence                            | nil    |
|   |      | (ii) licence for 1 year                                | 12.05  |
|   | (e)  | for explosives not mentioned in paragraphs (a) to      |        |
|   |      | (d)—   |        |
|   |      | (i) application for licence                            | nil    |
|   |      | (ii) licence for 1 year                                | 64.65  |
| 4 | Lice | ence to store explosives—                              |        |
|   | (a)  | for blasting explosives up to 100kg—                   |        |
|   |      | (i) application for licence                            | nil    |
|   |      | (ii) licence for 1 year                                | 84.85  |
|   | (b)  | for blasting explosives greater than 100kg—            |        |
|   |      | (i) application for licence                            | nil    |
|   |      | (ii) licence for 1 year                                | 330.90 |
|   | (c)  | for propellant powders up to 100kg—                    |        |
|   |      | (i) application for licence                            | nil    |
|   |      | (ii) licence for 1 year                                | 31.95  |
|   | (d)  | for propellant powders greater than 100kg but not      |        |
|   |      | greater than 250kg—                                    |        |
|   |      | (i) application for licence                            | nil    |
|   |      | (ii) licence for 1 year                                | 84.85  |
|   | (e)  | for propellant powders greater than 250kg—             |        |
|   |      | (i) application for licence                            | nil    |
|   |      | (ii) licence for 1 year                                | 330.90 |
|   | (f)  | for fireworks up to 100kg (gross weight)—              |        |
|   |      | (i) application for licence                            | nil    |
|   |      | (ii) licence for 1 year                                | 31.95  |
|   | (g)  | for fireworks greater than 100kg (gross weight)—       |        |
|   |      | (i) application for licence                            | nil    |
|   |      | (ii) licence for 1 year                                | 330.90 |
|   | (h)  | for explosives not mentioned in paragraphs (a) to (g), |        |
|   |      | up to 100kg—   | ••     |
|   |      | (i) application for licence                            | nil    |
|   |      | (ii) licence for 1 year                                | 31.95  |

|    |   | \$      |
|----|---|---------|
|    | (i) for explosives not mentioned in paragraphs (a) to (g),    |         |
|    | greater than 100kg—   |         |
|    | (i) application for licence                                   | nil     |
|    | (ii) licence for 1 year                                       | 330.90  |
| 5  | Licence to transport explosives—                              |         |
|    | (a) application for licence                                   | nil     |
|    | (b) licence for 1 year for each vehicle stated in the licence | 84.85   |
| 6  | Shotfirer licence—  |         |
|    | (a) application for licence                                   | nil     |
|    | (b) licence for 1 year  | 45.85   |
| 7  | Fireworks contractor licence—                                 |         |
|    | (a) application for licence                                   | nil     |
|    | (b) licence for 1 year  | 304.40  |
| 8  | Fireworks operator licence—                                   |         |
|    | (a) application for licence                                   | nil     |
|    | (b) licence for 1 year  | 97.35   |
| 9  | Licence to collect ammunition—                                |         |
|    | (a) application for licence                                   | nil     |
|    | (b) licence for 1 year  | 12.05   |
| 10 | Application for permit to import explosives                   | nil     |
| 11 | Application for permit to export explosives                   | nil     |
| 12 | Application for permit to store explosives                    | nil     |
| 13 | Application for explosives trial approval                     | nil     |
| 14 | Request for declaration that explosive be declared an         |         |
|    | authorised explosive  | 109.70  |
| 15 | Transfer of licence   | 33.45   |
| 16 | Duplicate of licence  | 33.45'. |
| 13 | Amendment of sch 4 (Explosives exempt from s Act)             | 44 of   |
|    | Schedule 4, heading, 's 44'—                                  |         |
|    | omit, insert—   |         |
|    | 'section 44'.   |         |

Page 12 2009 SL No. 73

## 14 Amendment of sch 5 (Explosives prescribed for s 50(3) of Act)

- (1) Schedule 5, heading, 's 50(3)'—

  omit, insert—

  'section 50(3)'.
- (2) Schedule 5, item 10(a), '50kg;'—

  omit, insert—

  '50kg; and'.

#### 15 Amendment of sch 7 (Dictionary)

- (1) Schedule 7, definitions *commencing day* and *existing—omit*.
- (2) Schedule 7—
   insert—
   'existing licensed seller, for part 12, see section 155.'.
- (3) Schedule 7, definitions *port* and *port authority*, 'schedule 3'— *omit, insert*—
  'schedule 6'.
- (4) Schedule 7, definition *UN model regulations*, 'eleventh'— *omit, insert*—

  '15th'.

# Part 5 Amendment of Fossicking Regulation 1994

#### 16 Regulation amended

This part amends the Fossicking Regulation 1994.

#### 17 Replacement of sch 1 (Fees)

Schedule 1—

omit, insert—

#### 'Schedule 1 Fees

|   |  | section 5 |
|---|--|-----------|
|   |  | \$        |
| 1 | Individual fossickers licence—                                       |           |
|   | (a) for 1 month  | 6.35      |
|   | (b) for 6 months   | 23.65     |
|   | (c) for 1 year   | 39.65     |
| 2 | Family fossickers licence—   |           |
|   | (a) for 1 month  | 9.05      |
|   | (b) for 6 months   | 30.35     |
|   | (c) for 1 year   | 53.05     |
| 3 | Club fossickers licence  |           |
| 4 | Educational organisation fossickers licence—                         |           |
|   | (a) for 1 month  | 26.35     |
|   | (b) for 1 year   | 53.05     |
| 5 | Commercial tour operator fossickers licence—                         |           |
|   | (a) for 1 month  | 46.45     |
|   | (b) for 1 year   | 399.10    |
| 6 | Individual or family fossickers camping permit—                      |           |
|   | (a) for each whole week  | 18.85     |
|   | (b) for each night not part of a whole week                          | 3.10      |
| 7 | Club or educational organisation fossickers camping                  |           |
|   | permit, for each person—   |           |
|   | (a) for each whole week  |           |
|   | (b) for each night not part of a whole week                          | 1.56      |
| 8 | Commercial tour operator fossickers camping permit, for each person— |           |
|   | (a) for each whole week  | 18.85     |

Page 14 2009 SL No. 73

|    | (b) for each night not part of a whole week     | 3.10   |
|----|---|--------|
| 9  | Copy of a licence                               | 6.35   |
| 10 | Application for agistment approval—for each tag | 12.65  |
| 11 | Agistment fee—for each tag, for each week       | 0.30'. |

# Part 6 Amendment of Gas Supply Regulation 2007

#### 18 Regulation amended

This part amends the Gas Supply Regulation 2007.

#### 19 Amendment of s 51 (Annual distribution fee—Act, s 40)

- (1) Section 51(2), '\$549'— *omit, insert*—

  '\$572'.
- (2) Section 51(3), formula, '45716'— *omit, insert*—

  '47681'.

#### 20 Amendment of s 52 (Annual retail fee—Act, s 166)

- (1) Section 52(2), '\$1099'—

  omit, insert—

  '\$1146'.
- (2) Section 52(3), formula, '82081'— *omit, insert*—

  '85610'.

[s 21]

#### 21 Replacement of sch 1 (Fees other than annual fees)

Schedule 1—

omit, insert—

#### 'Schedule 1 Fees other than annual fees

section 53

### **'Part 1 Distribution authorities**

|   |  | \$     |
|---|--|--------|
| 1 | Application for distribution authority (Act, s 28)   | 286.80 |
| 2 | Application to amend distribution authority, other than an amendment to correct a clerical or formal error (Act, s |        |
|   | 55)  | 85.95  |
| 3 | Application to renew distribution authority (Act, s 64)  | nil    |
| 4 | Application to transfer distribution authority (Act, s 68) .   | 286.80 |
| 5 | Application for approval of surrender of distribution  |        |
|   | authority (Act, s 73)  | nil    |

#### 'Part 2 Retail authorities

|   |   | \$     |
|---|---|--------|
| 1 | Application for retail authority (Act, s 149)             | 286.80 |
| 2 | Application to amend retail authority, other than an      |        |
|   | amendment to correct a clerical or formal error (Act, s   |        |
|   | 179)  | 85.95  |
| 3 | Application to renew retail authority (Act, s 188)        | nil    |
| 4 | Application to transfer retail authority (Act, s 192)     | 286.80 |
| 5 | Application for approval of surrender of retail authority |        |
|   | (Act, s 197)  | nil    |

Page 16 2009 SL No. 73

\$

#### 'Part 3 Other fees

# Part 7 Amendment of Geothermal Exploration Regulation 2005

#### 22 Regulation amended

This part amends the Geothermal Exploration Regulation 2005.

#### 23 Amendment of s 7 (Annual rent)

Section 7(1), '\$2.51'—

omit, insert—

'\$2.53'.

#### 24 Replacement of sch 1 (Fees)

Schedule 1—
omit, insert—

#### 'Schedule 1 Fees

section 5

|    |   | \$  |
|----|---|---|
| 1  | Tender for permit (Act, s 21(1)(i))   | 1 150.00  |
| 2  | Change of address for service (Act, s 48(3))  |   |
| 3  | Copy of required information for a permit (Act, s 49A(1)(b))—   |   |
|    | (a) for information made available on a CD or DVD   | 132.30  |
|    | (b) for information made available on a tape cartridge  | 264.80  |
| 4  | Application for renewal of permit (Act, s 52B(1)(e))  | 574.00  |
| 5  | Application by permit holder under section 57(1) of the Act (Act, s 57(2)(c))   | 460.60  |
| 6  | Application for waiver of requirement to give notice of   |   |
|    | entry (Act, s 92(2)(c)(ii))   | 57.45   |
| 7  | Search and take extracts from, or obtain a copy of all or part of a document or information in, the geothermal register (Act, s 124(1)(b) and (c))— |   |
|    | (a) for a standard departmental public tenure enquiry   |   |
|    | report  | 10.55   |
|    | (b) otherwise   | 22.95   |
|    |   | plus the<br>applicable<br>amount if<br>relevant |
| 8  | Application for transfer of exploration bore to permit  |   |
|    | holder (Act, s 126(3)(c))   | 172.70  |
| 9  | Application for transfer of exploration bore to landholder or mining interest holder (Act, s 127(4)(c))   | 172.70  |
| 10 | Application for transfer of exploration bore to the State   |   |
|    | (Act, s 128(5)(b))  | 172.70'   |

Page 18 2009 SL No. 73

# Part 8 Amendment of Mineral Resources Regulation 2003

#### 25 Regulation amended

This part amends the Mineral Resources Regulation 2003.

#### 26 Replacement of sch 5 (Rental payable)

Schedule 5—

#### 'Schedule 5 Rental payable

section 83

|   |   | \$      |
|---|---|---------|
| 1 | For a mining claim                                  | 32.75   |
| 2 | For an exploration permit—for each sub-block        | 132.40  |
| 3 | For a mineral development licence—for each hectare— |         |
|   | (a) for the first year of the licence               | 3.85    |
|   | (b) for the second year of the licence              | 7.70    |
|   | (c) for the third year of the licence               | 11.70   |
|   | (d) for the fourth year of the licence              | 20.10   |
|   | (e) for a year of the licence after the fourth year | 24.10   |
| 4 | For a mining lease—for each hectare                 | 51.15'. |

#### 27 Replacement of sch 6 (Fees)

Schedule 6—

omit, insert—

#### 'Schedule 6 Fees

section 84

| 'Part 1 | Prospecting | permits |
|---------|-------------|---------|
|         |             |         |

|     |  | \$    |
|-----|--|-------|
| 1   | Application for district prospecting permit—for each       |       |
|     | month (Act, s 21)  | 21.95 |
| 2   | Application for parcel prospecting permit (Act, s 21)      | 21.15 |
|     |  |       |
| 'Pá | art 2 Mining claims  |       |
|     |  | \$    |
| 1   | Application for grant of mining claim (Act, s 61)          | 44.45 |
| 2   | Application for renewal of mining claim (Act, s 93)        | 21.95 |
| 3   | Assigning mining claim or interest in mining claim (Act, s |       |
|     | 96)  | 13.15 |
| 4   | Mortgaging mining claim or interest in mining claim (Act,  |       |
|     | s 96)  | 15.05 |
| 5   | Lodging caveat (Act, s 97)                                 | 33.15 |
| 6   | Application to mine minerals not specified in mining claim |       |
|     | (Act, s 105)   | 17.55 |
| 7   | Lodging notice of surrender of mining claim (Act, s 107) . | 14.45 |
| 8   | Application for variation of access to land the subject of |       |
|     | mining claim (Act, s 125)                                  | 18.35 |

Page 20 2009 SL No. 73

## **'Part 3** Exploration permits

|     |  | \$     |
|-----|--|--------|
| 1   | Application for exploration permit (Act, s 133)            | 74.55  |
| 2   | Application for renewal of exploration permit (Act, s 147) | 37.05  |
| 3   | Assigning exploration permit (Act, s 151)                  | 15.05  |
| 4   | Lodging caveat (Act, s 152)                                | 33.15  |
| 5   | Application to record agreements, arrangements or other    |        |
|     | dealings or interests (Act, s 158)                         | 11.55  |
| 'Pá | art 4 Mineral development lice                             | nces   |
|     |  | \$     |
| 1   | Application for grant of mineral development licence (Act, |        |
|     | s 183)   | 112.20 |
| 2   | Application for renewal of mineral development licence     | 51.05  |
| 2   | (Act, s 197)   | 51.95  |
| 3   | Assigning mineral development licence (Act, s 198)         | 40.05  |
| 4   | Mortgaging mineral development licence (Act, s 198)        | 15.05  |
| 5   | Lodging caveat (Act, s 199)                                | 33.15  |
| 6   | Application to record agreements, arrangements or other    | 11.55  |
| 7   | dealings or interests (Act, s 205)                         | 11.55  |
| /   | (Act, s 208)   | 17.55  |
| 8   | Lodging notice of surrender of mineral development         | 17.55  |
| O   | licence (Act, s 210)                                       | 11.55  |
| 9   | Application for variation of access to land the subject of |        |
|     | mineral development licence (Act, s 231)                   | 21.95  |

## **'Part 5 Mining leases**

|    |  | \$     |
|----|--|--------|
| 1  | Application for grant of mining lease (Act, s 245)   | 149.40 |
| 2  | Application for renewal of mining lease (Act, s 286)   | 75.55  |
| 3  | Application to mine minerals not specified in mining lease (Act, s 298(2))                                     | 17.55  |
| 4  | Application to add a purpose (other than mining) to mining lease granted for purposes other than the mining of |        |
| _  | minerals (Act, s 298(5))   | 17.55  |
| 5  | Application to add a purpose to mining lease granted for mining of minerals (Act, s 298(7))                    | 17.55  |
| 6  | Application for consolidation of mining leases (Act, s 299)  | 37.05  |
| 7  | Assigning mining lease or an interest, other than a  |        |
|    | sublease, in mining lease (Act, s 300)   | 40.05  |
| 8  | Assigning sublease of mining lease (Act, s 300)  | 15.15  |
| 9  | Mortgaging mining lease or interest in mining lease (Act, s  |        |
|    | 300)   | 15.15  |
| 10 | Subleasing mining lease (Act, s 300)   | 15.15  |
| 11 | Assigning application for mining lease, or interest in   |        |
|    | application for mining lease (Act, s 300)  | 40.05  |
| 12 | Lodging caveat (Act, s 301)  | 33.15  |
| 13 | Lodging notice of surrender of mining lease (Act, s 309).  | 11.55  |
| 14 | Application for variation of access to land the subject of   |        |
|    | mining lease (Act, s 317)  | 21.95  |
| 15 | Obtaining copy of mining lease application (s 17)  | 20.85  |

Page 22 2009 SL No. 73

## 'Part 5A Fees relating to part 7AA of the Act

\$ 1 Application for amendment of relinquishment condition 460.60 Application to consolidate coal mining leases or oil shale 2 574.00 3 Proposed later development plan lodged within the time required under section 318EB(3) of the Act (Act, s 460.60 Lodging proposed initial development plan (Act, s 4 460.60 'Part 6 Royalty returns \$ Lodging royalty return after the last lodgement day for the return (s 28(4))..... 96.15 'Part 7 Register \$ Request to record sale under a writ of execution (s 1 15.05 Request to record transmission by death with or without a 2 grant of probate or letters of administration (s 62(2)(c)(iii) or 63(2)(c)(iv))...... 17.55 Request to record transmission in bankruptcy (s 3 64(2)(c)(iii))..... 15.05

|   |  | \$    |
|---|--|-------|
| 4 | Request to record death of joint holder (s 65(2)(c)(iii))  | 17.55 |
| 5 | Request for change or correction of name (s 66(2)(c)(iii)) | 15.05 |
| 6 | Search and take extracts from, or obtain a copy of all or  |       |
|   | part of a notice, document or information in, the register |       |
|   | (Act, s 387A(2)(b) and (c))—                               |       |
|   | (a) for a standard departmental public tenure enquiry      |       |
|   | report   | 10.75 |
|   | (b) otherwise  | 50.45 |

#### 'Part 8 Other fees

|      |  | \$      |
|------|--|---------|
| Issu | ue of a duplicate of mining tenement (Act, s 389)— |         |
| (a)  | for a prospecting permit                           | 7.25    |
| (b)  | for a mining claim                                 | 14.45   |
| (c)  | for an exploration permit                          | 21.95   |
| (d)  | for a mineral development licence                  | 29.65   |
| (e)  | for a mining lease                                 | 29.65'. |

# Part 9 Amendment of Mining and Quarrying Safety and Health Regulation 2001

#### 28 Regulation amended

This part amends the *Mining and Quarrying Safety and Health Regulation 2001*.

Page 24 2009 SL No. 73

## Amendment of s 112 (Specifications, instructions and other information about plant)

Section 112(1)(c), 'required'—

omit, insert—

'required to'.

#### 30 Replacement of sch 6 (Board of examiners' fees)

Schedule 6—

omit, insert—

#### 'Schedule 6 Board of examiners' fees

section 151

# Part 10 Amendment of Petroleum and Gas (Production and Safety) Regulation 2004

#### 31 Regulation amended

This part amends the *Petroleum and Gas (Production and Safety) Regulation 2004*.

#### 32 Amendment of sch 9 (Fees)

(1) Schedule 9, parts 1 to 3— *omit, insert*—

#### **'Part 1** Petroleum tenure fees

|          |  | \$     |
|----------|--|--------|
| 1        | Tender for authority to prospect—Act, s 37(e) 1  | 150.00 |
| 2        | Application for approval to amend the work program for an authority to prospect—Act, s 61(b)   | 460.60 |
| 3        | Proposed later work program lodged within the time required under section 79(3) of the Act—Act, s 79(6)  | 460.60 |
| 4        | Application for renewal of authority to prospect—Act, s 82(1)(j)(i)  | 574.00 |
| 5        | Application for potential commercial area for an authority to prospect—Act, s 89(2)(c)   | 919.00 |
| 6        | Application for extension of the term of a declaration of a potential commercial area for the area of an authority to prospect—Act, s 93(2)(b) | 460.60 |
| 7        | Application to divide an authority to prospect—Act, s 104(h)   | 574.00 |
| 8        | ATP-related application for a petroleum lease—Act, s 118(e)  | 150.00 |
| 9        | Proposed later development plan for petroleum lease lodged within the time required under section 159(3) of the                                | 460.60 |
| 10       | Act—Act, s 159(6)  | 574.00 |
| 11       | 162(1)(h)(i)   |        |
| 11<br>12 | Application to divide petroleum lease—Act, s 172(h) Notice of claim for stored petroleum or prescribed storage                                 | 574.00 |
| 12       | gas—Act, s 213(2)(c)   | 460.60 |
| 13       | Application for approval of proposed coordination  |        |
|          | arrangement—Act. s 235(2)(c)(ii)   | 460.60 |

Page 26 2009 SL No. 73

|     |  | \$       |
|-----|--|----------|
| 14  | Application for amendment of relinquishment condition—Act, s 372(1)(h)                                       | 460.60   |
| 15  | Proposed later development plan for converted lease lodged before the relevant time under section 897 of the | 400.00   |
|     | Act—Act, s 897(8)(a)   | 460.60   |
| 'Pa | ort 2 Data acquisition authority water monitoring authorit   |          |
|     |  | \$       |
| 1   | Application for data acquisition authority—Act, s 177(c).  | 345.40   |
| 2   | Application for water monitoring authority—Act, s 191(c)   | 345.40   |
| 3   | Application to amend water monitoring authority—Act, s 203(3)(c)   | 345.40   |
| 'Pa | art 3 Transfer fees  |          |
|     |  | \$       |
| 1   | Transfer of bore in the area of a petroleum tenure to the  | 1-2-0    |
| 2   | landowner—Act, s 288(3)(b)   | 172.70   |
|     | tenure to the holder of a geothermal exploration permit or mining tenement—Act, s 289(b)                     | 172.70   |
| 3   | Transfer of water observation bore in the area of a  | 172.70   |
| 3   | petroleum tenure or water monitoring authority to the  |          |
|     | holder of another petroleum tenure or water monitoring   |          |
|     | authority—Act, s 290(b)  | 172.70'. |
|     | (2) Schedule 9, part 4, items 1 to 3—  |          |

|              | omit, insert—   |
|--------------|---|
| '1<br>2      | Application for survey licence—Act, s 395(2)(e) 345.40<br>Application for pipeline licence—Act, s 409(g) 1 150.00               |
| 3            | Handling fee for recording information about completion of pipeline—Act, s 420(3)(d)  |
|              | (3) Schedule 9, part 4, item 4—   |
|              | omit, insert—   |
| '4           | Annual licence fee for pipeline licence—Act, s 423(1)— (a) for a point-to-point pipeline licence (for each                      |
|              | kilometre of the pipeline)  |
|              | (b) for an area pipeline licence (for each kilometre of the pipeline)   |
|              | (4) Schedule 9, part 4, item 5—   |
|              | omit, insert—   |
| <b>'</b> 5   | Application for petroleum facility licence—Act, s 445(g) . 1 150.00'.   |
|              | (5) Schedule 9, part 4, item 6—   |
|              | omit, insert—   |
| '6           | Annual licence fee for petroleum facility licence—Act, s 454(1)—  |
|              | (a) if the petroleum facility land for the licence is 2km² or less 2 327.00   |
|              | (b) if the petroleum facility land for the licence is more than 2km² (for each square kilometre of the petroleum facility land) |
|              | (6) Schedule 9, part 4, items 7 to 9—   |
|              | omit, insert—   |
| '7<br>8<br>9 | Application for a part 5 permission—Act, s 464(c) 574.00<br>Application to amend licence—Act, s 475(c)                          |
|              | (7) Schedule 9, parts 5 to 7—   |
|              | omit, insert—   |

Page 28 2009 SL No. 73

# 'Part 5 General petroleum authority fees payable under chapter 5 of the Act

|   |   | \$     |
|---|---|--------|
| 1 | Fee for required information for a petroleum tenure made available by the chief executive—Act, s 550(1)(b)—   |        |
|   | (a) for information made available in an electronic form, other than on a tape cartridge  | 135.70 |
|   | (b) for information made available on a tape cartridge  | 271.60 |
| 2 | Fee to search and take extracts from, or obtain a copy of all or part of a notice, document or information in, the petroleum register—Act, s 566(1)(b) and (c)— |        |
|   | (a) for a standard departmental public tenure enquiry   |        |
|   | report  | 10.55  |
|   | (b) otherwise   | 52.35  |
| 3 | Request fee—Act, s 571(3)   | 114.90 |
| 4 | Application for approval of dealing—Act, s 572(2)(c)(iii).  | 114.90 |
| 5 | Application for surrender of petroleum authority—Act, s   |        |
|   | 576(1)(c)   | 460.60 |

## 'Part 6 Gas work licence and gas work authorisation fees

|   |  | \$    |
|---|--|-------|
| 1 | Application for gas work licence—Act, s 728A(c)—  (a) if the applicant applies for a gas work authorisation (industrial appliances) at the same time | nil   |
|   | (b) otherwise  | 34.35 |
| 2 | Annual fee for gas work licence—s 118—  (a) if the holder also holds a gas work authorisation (industrial appliances)                                | nil   |

|   |  | \$       |
|---|--|----------|
|   | (b) otherwise  | 22.95    |
| 3 | Application for gas work authorisation—Act, s 728A(c)—                                 |          |
|   | (a) for a gas work authorisation (hydrocarbon refrigerant)                             | 114.90   |
|   | (b) for a gas work authorisation (industrial appliances)—                              |          |
|   | (i) if the applicant applies for a gas work  |          |
|   | authorisation (motor fuel) at the same time  | nil      |
|   | (ii) otherwise   | 57.45    |
|   | (c) for a gas work authorisation (major project)                                       | 1 727.00 |
|   | (d) for a gas work authorisation (motor fuel)  | 57.45    |
|   | (e) for a gas work authorisation (servicing)   | 57.45    |
| 4 | Annual fee for gas work authorisation—s 126—   |          |
|   | (a) for a gas work authorisation (hydrocarbon refrigerant)                             | 34.35    |
|   | (b) for a gas work authorisation (industrial appliances)—                              |          |
|   | (i) if the holder also holds a gas work authorisation                                  |          |
|   | (motor fuel)   | nil      |
|   | (ii) otherwise   | 34.35    |
|   | (c) for a gas work authorisation (major project)                                       |          |
|   | (d) for a gas work authorisation (motor fuel)  | 34.35    |
| _ | (e) for a gas work authorisation (servicing)   | 34.35    |
| 5 | Application to change the scope of work stated in a gas                                | 57.45    |
| 6 | work authorisation—Act, s 728A(c)  | 57.45    |
| 6 | Replacement of gas work licence or gas work authorisation under section 849 of the Act | 34.35    |
|   | authorisation under section 647 of the 7 tet   | 34.33    |
|   |  |          |
| Έ | art 7 Other fees mentioned in t  | he Act   |
|   |  | \$       |
| 1 | Late fee for royalty return—Act, s 595(3)  | 96.15    |
| 2 | Application for gas quality approval—Act, s 622(2)(c)                                  | 287.80   |
| 3 | Fee for copy of a document or information held in the                                  |          |
| - | register of gas work licences and authorisations—Act, s                                |          |
|   | 731(1)(c)  | 11.35'.  |

Page 30 2009 SL No. 73

- (8) Schedule 9, part 8, section 1, formula, '140000'—

  omit, insert—

  '146000'.
- (9) Schedule 9, part 8, section 2, formula, '210000'—

  omit, insert—
  '219000'.
- (10) Schedule 9, part 8, section 3(1)(a) and (2)(a), '\$22088'—

  omit, insert—

  '\$23037'.
- (11) Schedule 9, part 8, section 3(1)(b) and (2)(b), '\$5521'—

  omit, insert—

  '\$5758'.
- (12) Schedule 9, part 8, section 4(1), formula, '200000'— *omit, insert*—

  '208500'.
- (13) Schedule 9, part 8, section 5, formula, '640000'—

  omit, insert—

  '667500'.
- (14) Schedule 9, part 8, section 6, formula, '730000'—

  omit, insert—

  '761000'.
- (15) Schedule 9, part 8, section 6A, formula, '100000'—

  omit, insert—

  '104000'.
- (16) Schedule 9, part 8, section 7, '\$5521'— *omit, insert*—

  '\$5758'.

[s 33]

(17) Schedule 9, part 8, section 8(1)(a) and (2), '\$551'—

omit, insert—

'\$574'.

#### 33 Replacement of sch 10 (Annual rent)

Schedule 10—
omit, insert—

#### 'Schedule 10 Annual rent

sections 145(1) and 146(1)

#### 'Part 1 Annual rent

|   |  | \$     |
|---|--|--------|
| 1 | Annual rent for authority to prospect (for each sub-block included in the area for the authority)—Act, s 75(1)(b)    | 2.53   |
| 2 | Annual rent for petroleum lease (for each square kilometre of the area for the lease)—Act, s 155(1)(b)               | 127.90 |
| 3 | Annual rent for data acquisition authority (for each sub-block included in the area of the authority)—Act, s 184A(1) | 2.53   |
| 4 | Annual rent for water monitoring authority (for each sub-block included in the area of the authority)—Act, s 202A(1) | 1.25   |
| 5 | Annual rent for 1923 Act ATP (for each sub-block included in the area for the authority)—1923 Act, s 74N(1)(b)       | 2.53   |

Page 32 2009 SL No. 73

#### 'Part 2 Storage rent

\$

Annual rent for storing petroleum or prescribed storage gas (for each square kilometre of the area for the old lease or, if the Minister has made a call for tenders under the Act, section 218, the area of the proposed petroleum lease stated in the call for tenders)—Act, s 227(3)............

127.90'.

# Part 11 Amendment of Petroleum Regulation 2004

#### 34 Regulation amended

This part amends the *Petroleum Regulation* 2004.

35 Amendment of s 40 (Annual rent [P&G, s 145])

Section 40(1), '\$126.40'—

omit, insert—

'\$127.90'.

36 Replacement of sch 2 (Fees)

Schedule 2—
omit, insert—

#### 'Schedule 2 Fees

section 39(1)

### 'Part 1 1923 Act petroleum tenure fees

|   |   | \$     |
|---|---|--------|
| 1 | Application for surrender of authority to prospect—Act, s 21(4)(c)(i)   | 460.60 |
| 2 | Application for approval to amend the work program for an authority to prospect—Act, s 25I(b)                       | 460.60 |
| 3 | Application for renewal of authority to prospect—Act, s 25M(1)(j)(i)  | 574.00 |
| 4 | Application for renewal of lease—Act, s 45(2A)(e)(i)  | 574.00 |
| 5 | Application for surrender of lease—Act, s 52(1B)(c)(i)  | 460.60 |
| 6 | Proposed later work program lodged within the time required under section 74K(3) of the Act—Act, s 74K(6)           | 460.60 |
| 7 | Proposed later development plan for lease lodged within<br>the time required under section 74Q(3) of the Act—Act, s |        |
|   | 74Q(6)  | 460.60 |
| 8 | Application for amendment of relinquishment   |        |
|   | condition—Act s 77T(1)(h)   | 460 60 |

Page 34 2009 SL No. 73

#### 'Part 2 Transfer fees

\$ 1 Transfer of water observation bore or water supply bore in the area of a 1923 Act petroleum tenure to the Transfer of well in the area of a 1923 Act petroleum tenure 2 to the holder of a geothermal exploration permit or mining tenement—Act, s 75R(b)..... 172.70 Transfer of water observation bore in the area of a 1923 3 Act petroleum tenure to the holder of another 1923 Act petroleum tenure or a 2004 Act petroleum tenure—Act, s 172.70

#### 'Part 3 General fees

1 Fee for required information for a 1923 Act petroleum tenure made available by the chief executive—Act, s 76D(1)(b)— (a) for information made available in an electronic form, (b) for information made available on a tape cartridge . . . 2 Fee to search and take extracts from, or obtain a copy of all or part of a notice, document or information in, the petroleum register—Act, s 80C(b) and (c)— (a) for a standard departmental public tenure enquiry report...... 10.55 52.35 115.00 3 Request fee—Act, s 80H(3)..... 4 Application for approval of dealing—Act, s 80I(2)(c)(iii). 115.00'.

#### **ENDNOTES**

- 1 Made by the Governor in Council on 4 June 2009.
- 2 Notified in the gazette on 5 June 2009.
- 3 Laid before the Legislative Assembly on . . .
- 4 The administering agency is the Department of Employment, Economic Development and Innovation.

© State of Queensland 2009

Page 36 2009 SL No. 73